
Workforce Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Workforce Panel to be held as follows for 
the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 9 July 2019

TIME: 12.30 pm

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11 June 2019 (Pages 1 - 2)

4  People Directorate - Leadership Role (Pages 3 - 14)

5  Any Other Business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Page | 1 

WORKFORCE PANEL

Held on Tuesday 11 June 2019

Meeting started at 1:00pm
Meeting started at 1:17pm

PRESENT: Councillor John Ferguson – Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial 
Relations – in the chair

Councillors Paula Boshell, Bill Hinds, David Lancaster, Tracy Kelly, Gina 
Reynolds

OFFICERS: Sam Betts Assistant Director HR & OD
Jim Taylor Chief Executive
Carol Eddleston Senior Democratic Services Advisor

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the City Mayor Paul Dennett and 
Councillors Derek Antrobus and John Merry.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 March 2019 were approved as a correct 
record.

4. SERVICE RE-ALIGNMENT, PUBLIC HEALTH & LEADERSHIP APPOINTMENTS

The Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations invited the Chief Executive 
to present for approval proposals for the realignment of functions following the 
resignation of the Strategic Director for Public Health, Strategy & Policy, the 
proposed revised arrangements for the statutory Director of Public Health, and the 
proposed approach and process for the recruitment, selection and appointment to the 
post of Assistant Director, Children’s Social Care. 

Recruitment to posts at this level required an Appointment Panel to be established 
and the report made recommendations for the Workforce Panel to consider on how 
the panels for the roles concerned should be constituted. 

Full Council was informed of any appointments with a salary band which included 
£100k or above but had no right of veto. Consequently recruitment arrangements 
could commence immediately subject to approval by the Workforce Panel.

RESOLVED: THAT, 

1. The Workforce Panel note the realignment of service responsibilities as outlined in 
the report;
2. The Workforce Panel agree to the re-designation of the post of Strategic Director 
for Service Reform.
3. The Workforce Panel approve the redesigned role and post of Director of Public 
Health.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2 

4. The Workforce Panel agree to recommend to full Council the proposals relating to 
the remuneration of Chief Officers.
5. The Workforce Panel agree the membership of the Appointment Panel(s) for the 
posts of Director of Public Health and Assistant Director, Children’s Social Care.
6. The Appointment Panel(s) be delegated to agree the final details of the recruitment 
and selection arrangements as follows:-
(a) Agree the role profile for the DPH in consultation with the Faculty of Public Health.
(b) Agree the role profile for the Assistant Director, Children’s Social Care.
(c) Agree an external recruitment approach.
(d) Agree the detail of the selection process.
(e) Agree the use of external executive search and support for the process.
(f) Appoint a suitable candidate, (subject to confirmation of the Secretary of State for 
Health’s agreement to the appointment for the DPH), and notify Cabinet Members 
allowing any objections to the offer to the City Mayor.
 

Page 2



1

Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE

TO THE WORKFORCE PANEL

ON 

9TH JULY 2019

TITLE:  PEOPLE DIRECTORATE – LEADERSHIP ROLE

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Workforce Panel approves the establishment of the redesigned role 
and post of Assistant Director for Early Help and School Readiness. 

2. Notes the internal approach to recruitment and agrees that the appointment is 
made by an officer panel as set out in paragraph 3.1 of the report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Salford City Council has a strong commitment to ‘growing our own’ and supports the 
development of our existing workforce through opportunities for career progression 
whilst ensuring that we have the capacity and capabilities that we need for now and 
in the future through effective succession planning.  

This report sets out the proposed approached for realignment of responsibilities 
across the People Directorate leadership team creating opportunities for career 
progression and succession planning and also outlines the proposed approach for 
making an Assistant Director appointment exclusively from existing officers.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

KEY DECISION: YES / NO

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2

DETAILS:

1. Background and context

The GM White Paper on unified public services outlines the GM model for public 
service delivery and places reform at the heart of the regional strategic ambitions. It 
makes a commitment, shared by Salford, to reshaping public services based on the 
principles of place-based working and integrated delivery, supporting as many people 
as possible to contribute to and benefit from the opportunities that inclusive growth 
brings.

Leading the way in Salford through local services working together across 
organisational boundaries focused on people and place we are transforming the role 
of public services taking a more proactive approach. Building on the principles of 
early intervention and prevention aiming to deliver appropriate services at the right 
time, supporting people to become healthier, more resilient and empowered.

This is reflected in our approach to reforming public services at a local level through 
the creation of place based integrated teams with co-located or aligned professionals 
from across public services, working together delivering services for children young 
people and families and adult health and care plus wider adult support through 
further development of our early help model.  The next phase for place based 
working is to bring these models together, aligned with the recently redesigned model 
for customer services. Our focus is on enabling the best outcomes we can for people 
of all ages, linked to the collective resources we have available. Effective early help 
delivers better outcomes for individuals and over time results in less need for very 
high cost intensive services.

Developing the right skilled, flexible and resilient workforce able to achieve our 
ambition of ‘A Better and Fairer Salford’, can only be achieved if we invest in skills 
and professional development and we continue to retain the best talent within the 
organisation. 

Salford City Council has a strong commitment to ‘growing our own’ and supports the 
development of our existing workforce through opportunities for career progression 
whilst ensuring that we have the capacity and capabilities we need for now and in the 
future.  Through our established approach to succession planning we have a proven 
track record of investment in the development of our internal workforce.

In line with this established approach and following turnover in the leadership team - 
leadership roles have been reviewed to align key service areas and provide 
leadership capability and capacity to further develop integrated public services and 
improve outcomes for children, young people and families.  

The approach outlined in this report will provide capacity to continue to lead and 
further develop integrated models across early help whilst continuing to develop 
whole system models for integrated place-based delivery for people and places and 
provides an opportunity for succession planning and development from within the 
existing team.

Page 4



3

2. Assistant Director, Early Help and School Readiness

To provide leadership capability and to further develop integrated public services and 
improve outcomes for children, young people and families, it is proposed to establish 
the post of Assistant Director for Early Help and School Readiness.  

The role will lead and further develop integrated models across early years and early 
help whilst continuing to develop whole system models for integrated place-based 
delivery for people and places. 

The post will strategically lead the development and implementation of Salford’s early 
years, early help and integrated neighbourhood strategy, ensuring the delivery of 
high quality intervention and prevention services across the city.  Working with 
stakeholders, partners and agencies the post holder will develop fully integrated, 
multi-agency, locality/place based early years and early help focused services 
improving outcomes for children, young people and families.  In addition, the post will 
lead the further development of integrated locality based neighbourhood services that 
connect effectively on an all age basis in accordance with the GM Public Service 
Reform model for unified public services.

The post will enhance the council’s leadership capacity in this priority area and will 
enable the council, along with its partners, to build on what has been achieved so far, 
with pace and impact in terms of the best use of our collective resources and 
outcomes for our residents. It will work in partnership with other key roles to ensure 
seamless pathways are in place when additional specialist services are needed.

This post will report directly to the Strategic Director for People and will work with the 
Place and Service Reform directorates and all stakeholders, partners and agencies 
to lead and further develop our integrated place based model connecting teams of 
professionals across public services and developing a ‘one team’ ethos focussed on 
people centred solutions in a place in line with the GM public service reform model.  
A new draft role profile for the post is attached at Appendix 1.

As detailed in the Pay Policy Statement the council uses the chief officer job 
evaluation scheme developed by the Local Government Employers. This scheme 
applies to all senior posts paid on locally determined salary points from spinal column 
point 53 and above, incorporating all chief officer posts.  This provides assurance that 
all pay differentials can be objectively justified through the use of job evaluation 
mechanisms which directly establish the relative levels of posts and grades according 
to the requirements, demands and responsibilities of the role. 

The posts within the council falling within the definition of ‘chief officers’ for these 
purposes are those at second tier which is Assistant Director and above and 
constitutes the council’s Senior Leadership Team.  

The Assistant Director, Early Help and School Readiness post has been evaluated 
under the job evaluation scheme for Local Government Chief Officers and Senior 
Managers.  The salary scale, as determined by the outcome of this exercise, is 
£70,883 - £77,972 per annum in line with Band E of the agreed senior pay structure.

Page 5



4

The appointment will be in accordance with the JNC for Chief Officer terms and 
conditions.

3. Recruitment and selection arrangements

Salford City Council has a strong commitment and proven track record for ‘growing 
our own’ and supports the development of our existing workforce through 
opportunities for career progression whilst ensuring that we have the capacity and 
capabilities we need for now and in the future.  We have invested in the development 
of our internal workforce and take a pro-active approach to succession planning to 
ensure that we continue to retain the best talent within the organisation.

It is therefore intended that this post be recruited to from our internal talent pool and 
ring-fenced to current third tier officers in children’s services. Subject to identifying 
the successful candidate there may be the need to realign duties at the third tier level 
and this will be addressed following the substantive post being appointed to.

3.1 Appointment panel

Where the council proposes to make an appointment at this level and it is not 
proposed that that appointment be made exclusively from among their existing 
officers, it is one of the responsibilities of the Workforce Panel to establish an 
Appointment Panel for the recruitment and appointment to the post.  The Workforce 
Panel will determine whether appointments to such posts should be made by an all 
officer panel or a mixed panel of officers and Members. 

As outlined above it is intended that the appointment will be made exclusively from 
amongst existing officers and it is therefore proposed that an appropriate 
appointment panel will be convened chaired by the Strategic Director for People, and 
advised by the Assistant Director for HR and OD and fair, equitable and transparent 
recruitment and selection arrangements will be put in place.

The Appointment Panel will have delegated responsibility to agree the final details of 
the recruitment and selection arrangements as follows: -

(a) Agree the role profile.
(b) Agree an internal recruitment approach.
(c) Agree the detail of the selection process.
(e) Appoint a suitable candidate.

4. Leading Salford

The #LeadingSalford leadership framework has been developed with clear 
expectations of leaders and managers in Salford. This framework is intended to 
address the issue of clarity of expectations in terms of how leaders and managers 
operate and their behaviours. It is underpinned by a consistent approach to 
leadership development and has been designed to enable everybody to understand 
what it means to be a leader in Salford. 

Effective leaders and managers are critical to the success of our reform agenda and 
therefore investment in developing their skills is essential.  

Page 6



5

The framework is based on values-based leadership and describes the behaviour 
required for leadership of self, others, outcomes and the way forward. There are four 
main components to the framework - leadership behaviours, management skills, 
development activities and our values. The values based leadership element is at the 
heart of the framework to ensure that all of our leadership expectations are grounded 
in modelling and embedding the values in the way managers and their teams work. 
Effective leaders are values driven and trustworthy, their behaviour is consistent and 
ethical and they follow through and deliver on commitments. 

The #LeadingSalford leadership framework and expected behaviours are now the 
cornerstone by which leadership roles are designed and how we recruit and select 
our leaders.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Mary Sutton, Head of Litigation and 
Employment Group email: m.sutton@manchester.gov.uk telephone: 0161 234 3465

The proposals in this report comply with the Officer Employment Procedure Rules in 
the Council's constitution for the appointment of Deputy Chief Officers. It should be 
noted that Annex 1 of the Officer Employment Procedure rules must be followed 
before an offer of employment is made."

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Joanne Hardman, Chief Finance Officer

The cost of this post at local scale band E is between £70,883 and 77,972 plus on-
costs.  There is no existing budget provision for this post and therefore any additional 
costs arising from its creation will need to be met from savings within the wider 
Children’s Services budget or the identification of alternative funding sources. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Catherine Sharples, Strategic HR & OD Manager

Are contained within the body of the report.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: All

CONTACT OFFICER:  Charlotte Ramsden TEL NO: 0161 778 0130

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 

Page 7

mailto:m.sutton@manchester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Assistant Director – Early Help and School Readiness 
Service: People Grade: Local Scale Band E Salary: £70,883 - £77,972

Reporting to: Strategic Director for People Location: Salford Civic Centre Hours: 36 hours per week

About the role Our priorities 
 Strategically lead the development and implementation of Salford’s early years, early help and integrated 

neighbourhood strategy, ensuring the provision and delivery of high quality school readiness and early years and 
early intervention and prevention services, including integrated youth support services, across the city. 

 Work with stakeholders, partners and agencies to develop fully integrated, multi-agency, locality/place based early 
years and early help focused services improving outcomes for children, young people and families. 

 Work with the Place and Service Reform directorates and all stakeholders, partners and agencies to lead and 
further develop integrated locality based neighbourhood services that connect effectively on an all age basis in 
accordance with the GM Public Service Reform model for unified public services.

 Take overall strategic and operational responsibility for transforming and continually improving the early help offer 
for young people and families across Salford, connected to other neighbourhood services and specialist children’s 
services as needed.

 Ensure the provision of a creative and flexible range of effective early help services and interventions which 
support self-reliant and resilient families in the city.

 Champion the voice and influence of young people and families, ensuring they are at the centre of the development 
and delivery of early help and prevention services.  

 Work in partnership with the AD Children’s Social Care to ensure safeguarding arrangements within early help are 
robust.

 Works closely with elected members and senior leadership to ensure the effective delivery of services in line with 
the City Mayor’s and City Council priorities.

 Lead a culture of learning & development that inspires employees and provides senior management support within 
the division, motivating and supporting all employees to attain the highest professional standards, skills, 
knowledge, attributes and competencies required to fulfil their duties.

 Provides strong leadership and clear direction to the division and other partners to achieve transformational change 
and co-ordinate the effective delivery of early help and prevention services.

 Provides visible, strategic leadership as part of the Leadership team within People Services, and embodies the City 
Council’s Leadership Framework.

 Ensures effective people management across the division, encouraging a positive employee relations climate and 
active employee and trade union engagement.

 Ensures appropriate arrangements are in place for preparing and monitoring budgets and associated income for 
the division and adheres to the standing orders and financial arrangements of the Council.

 Through personal example, commitment and action develop an inclusive, supportive and constructive environment 
where everyone is treated with dignity and respect and diversity is valued in the workplace, in service delivery and 
communications.

 Undertake duties as part of the Emergency Planning and business continuity rota.  

P
age 9

https://www.salford.gov.uk/priorities


Key outcomes
 Develops effective approaches to ensure early years and early help 

interventions are integrated, strengths based and support a whole 
family approach. 

 Leads the development of an integrated public service system around 
people, places and their needs focussed on early intervention and 
prevention.

 Develops an overarching public service reform system in 
neighbourhoods that connects different areas of partnership and 
stakeholder responsibilities.

 Leads the further development of our integrated place based model 
connecting teams of co-located professionals across public services 
and developing the ‘one team’ ethos focussed on people centred 
solutions in a place in line with the GM public service reform model for 
unified public services. 

 Supports the implementation of digital transformation in early years 
and early help to deliver the most effective ways of working.

 Contributes to the setting, monitoring and meeting of service, cross 
service and corporate strategic intents, plus targets and objectives, to 
deliver effective, efficient and business focused strategic solutions, 
working in partnership with management teams.

 Leads a learning culture which inspires staff and provides senior 
management to employees within the Service Group,  motivating and 
supporting them to attain the highest professional standards, skills, 
knowledge, attributes and competencies required to fulfil their duties.

 Leads, builds and manages positive, constructive productive 
relationships between the Division, its strategic partners, 
stakeholders, local communities and service users to enable the 
development of effective commissioning and implementation of 
seamless services built around the needs of children and young 
people.

 Working with partner agencies, develops and delivers services which 
effectively safeguard children, promote their welfare and support their 
families, with a clear focus on best outcomes.

 Promotes strong, direct and effective communications and consultation 
within the Council and externally to ensure the Council’s messages are 
conveyed in a timely, transparent and coherent manner; that appropriate 
systems and available technology are used to best effect, and that 
children and young peoples’ views are heard.

 Ensures active engagement with children and young people plus their 
families, in order to promote a culture of learning and coproduction as 
services develop.

 Ensures that a range of accurate data sets and analysis are used as the 
basis for informed planning and dialogue with stakeholders and 
commissioned providers, and for determining appropriate actions to be 
taken by the Local Authority to best meet the needs of children and young 
people.

 Develops and maintains a workforce with the capacity and capability to 
deliver on the agenda for the division and develops a learning culture that 
promotes innovation and creativity in service transformation and delivery.

 Plans, monitors and reviews the service area budget, providing ongoing 
scrutiny to ensure that services are provided within budget and show 
value for money, and that all commissioned and grant funded budgets 
and other Local Authority budget areas are effectively managed.

 Puts effective performance management processes in place and routinely 
monitors them to secure continuous improvement in the services 
provided, and to address any issues that may affect service delivery.

 Produces an annual business plan so that divisional work programmes 
are aligned with the Council’s political priorities and that resources are 
made available to deliver them.

 Builds effective networks at senior levels and uses these to lead and 
influence professional groups to secure cross-system change

P
age 10



What we need from you

 Professional credibility and capability through proven experience, 
expert and specialist knowledge across early years, early help and 
prevention services.

 A proven track record of successful strategic leadership across 
early years and early help including multi-disciplinary teams

 Successful experience of creating and maintaining effective and 
influential partnerships, working collaboratively at a senior level to 
develop and deliver better outcomes for children, young people and 
families.

 Knowledge and understanding of the GM Model for reforming 
public services and the outcomes it seeks to achieve.

 Experience of successfully leading and supporting transformation 
and culture change

 Experience in taking a ‘whole system’ approach and commitment to 
playing a key role in the development and implementation of the 
Greater Manchester Children’s plan and the opportunities this 
brings for Salford. 

 Skilled communicator who communicates with clarity, conviction 
and enthusiasm both verbally and in written reports and is able to 
demonstrate integrity, create rapport and build trust and 
confidence.

 Understand and works within the bigger picture and broader context 
and is able to translate overarching plans to a local setting.

 Having a high level of intellectual rigour, political awareness, 
negotiation and motivational skills, plus flexibility. 

 Working to high standards, setting challenging goals that are focused 
on outcomes, not activities and drives for continuous improvement..

 Being open to learning and sharing your knowledge and skills with 
others; providing coaching and support to others to help them achieve 
their objectives and potential.

 Ability to translate complex ideas and information into meaningful and 
‘user-friendly’ information; ‘tells the story’ to bring people along and 
ensure all audiences understand the key messages

 Models and demonstrates the City Council’s values and leadership 
behaviours, creating a shared purpose and positive permission culture 
that enables people to thrive through development, involvement and 
well-being.

P
age 11



Our leadership behaviours  Our values 

As a values-based leader you will:

 Model the values and embed them in the 
way your team delivers services

 Hold people accountable for delivering the 
values

 Respect and care for others, treating 
everyone fairly, valuing and welcoming 
diversity, respecting people’s identity, 
listening and acting on the things people 
say to enable everyone to achieve their 
full potential

 Be honest, taking responsibility for your 
actions and decisions

 Use resources that you are trusted with 
wisely

To lead and develop people you will:

 Listen to understand, not to defend
 Give people the freedom to use their initiative
 Provide opportunities for people to discuss and 

solve problems and issues
 Regularly provide coaching and support to 

others to help them achieve their objectives 
and potential

 Appreciate and build on people’s strengths
 Motivate, engage, encourage and inspire 

others in order to be the best they can be

To create a performance and development 
culture you will:

 Be visible, inject pace, vigour and purpose
 Expect high standards; mediocrity is not 

acceptable
 Take an evidence and whole system 

approach in making decisions
 Maximise technology and models to 

deliver quicker, easier, better services
 Have a digital mindset, fully utilising digital 

systems and solutions to deliver services 
differently

 Set context and challenging goals that will 
motivate people to take ownership, 
maximise performance, and develop

To build and communicate a vision for the 
future you will:

 Be optimistic and ambitious for the city and its 
people, helping others to understand the need 
to transform public services

 Build strong collaborative relationships to find 
creative ways to make services more 
sustainable and flexible

 Recognise and values the strengths of people 
and places, taking a strengths-based approach 
to make the most of opportunities

 Support people through change, in undertaking 
new things, and taking risks

 Take a place and whole system approach in 
designing, delivering and leading services

 Ensure an inclusive approach with the aim of 
reflecting the increasing diversity of Salford

P
age 12

https://www.salford.gov.uk/ourvalues


Application guidance

We are a values based organisation so reflecting our values or a values based approach in your evidence will support your application.

The ‘Key outcomes’, ‘What we need from you’ and ‘our leadership behaviours’ sections of the Role Profile are there to give you an understanding of what we 
would like to see reflected in your application. Don’t give up if you are not able to reflect all of these in your application. 

                         

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11 June 2019
	4 People Directorate - Leadership Role
	04 - Appendix 1 Final Role Profile - Early Help  School Readiness


